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MISSION STATEMENT
Trust Modaraba aims to evolve and practice exemplary standards of integrity and proficiency 
by achieving balanced growth, building quality investment portfolio, maintaining high 
standards of efficiency and providing good return to its certificate holders. Trust Modaraba shall 
endeavor to maintain a comprehensive edge in the industry and contribute effectively in 
promotion of Islamic Financial Regime. It shall adopt a management culture based on 
participation, motivation and accountability to achieve professional and personal excellence 
and growth of human resource.
Trust Modaraba shall achieve a balanced texture of being a prudent and progressive 
organization with a sound image in the market place
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MODARABA COMPANY
AI-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Mian Sheikh Arshad Farooq  Chairman
Mr. Basheer Ahmed Chowdry  Chief Executive
Mr. Syed Shahnawaz Ahmed Rizvi  Director
Mr. Syed Etrat Hussain Rizvi   Director
Mr. Mohammad Yasin   Director
Mr. Sohail Ansar    Director
Dr. Mrs. Namoos Baquar   Director

MANAGEMENT
Mr. Basheer Ahmed Chowdry  Chief Executive
Ms. Hamida Aqeel    Chief Operating Officer/Company Secretary
Mr. ljaz Ahmed Khan   Chief Financial Officer/Regional Head

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Syed Shahnawaz Ahmed Rizvi  Chairman
Mr. Mian Sheikh Arshad Farooq  Member
Mr. Syed Etrat Hussain Rizvi   Member
Mr. Sohail Ansar    Member

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Syed Etrat Hussain Rizvi   Chairman
Mr. Syed Shahnawaz Ahmed Rizvi  Member
Mr. Basheer Ahmed Chowdry  Member
Mr. Muhammad Yasin   Member

INTERNAL AUDITORS
UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
Chartered Accountants

AUDITORS OF THE MODARABA
Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman.
Chartered Accountants

BANKER
Meezan Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISORS
Holscott International
S&B Durrani Law Assoicates

REGISTERED OFFICE/PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
104-106, Kassam Court, BC-9, Block-5, Clifton, Karachi-75600
Telephone: 021-35876651, 35876652
Fax: 021-35870408 Web: trustmodaraba.com
Email: info@trustmodaraba.com

REGIONAL OFFICE
301 & 320, 3rd Floor, Garden Heights, 8-Aibak Block, New Garden Town, Lahore
Telephone: 042-35941957-8 Fax: 042 35866513

REGISTRARS
Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited
1st Floor, H.M. House, 7-Bank Square, Lahore Telephone: 042- 37235081-2 Fax: 042-37358817

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING

Hamida Aqeel

Company Secretary

Karachi

September 28th, 2022.

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Review Meeting of Trust Modaraba to review the 
performance of the Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2022 will be held on 
Thursday 27th October, 2022 at 10:15 am at NBFI & Modaraba Association of Pakistan, 
602, Progressive Centre, 30-A, Block-6, PECHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-75400.

The certificate transfer books of the Modaraba will remain closed from Thursday, 
October 20, 2022, to Thursday, October 27, 2022 (both days inclusive).
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

I am pleased to report that the performance of Trust Modaraba during the year 2021-22 
remained strong with 98% increase in profit before tax which is a reflection of the 
effectiveness of oversight role of the Board of Directors and efforts of the management 
and staff to achieve the targets set for the year.

It is also encouraging to report that the improvements achieved by your Modaraba in all 
the key performance indicators including credit quality was duly acknowledged by the 
rating agency and after due analysis enhance the credit rating of the Modaraba by two 
points to BBB+/A-2 with assignment of “Stable” outlook.   

As required under the code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board 
of Directors of Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited is carried out. The 
purpose of evaluation is to ensure that the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness 
is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context of objectives set for the 
Modaraba.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2022, the Board’s overall performance and 
effectiveness has been assessed as “Satisfactory”. Improvement is an ongoing process 
leading to action plans. The overall assessment as “Satisfactory” is based on an evaluation 
of integral components, including visions, mission and values; engagement in strategic 
planning, formulation of polices, monitoring the organization’s business activates; 
financial resource management, effective fiscal oversight, equitable treatment of all 
employees and efficiency in carrying out the Board’s business.

The Board’s of Directors of the Company received agendas and supporting written 
material including follow up material in sufficient time prior to the Board and its 
committee meetings. The Board meets frequently enough to adequate its responsibilities. 
The non-executive and independent directors are equally involved in important 
decisions.    

        Mian Sheikh Arshad Farooq

         CHAIRMAN

Karachi

September 28th, 2022.
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KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE LAST SIX YEARS
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REPORT OF SHARIAH ADVISOR
I have conducted a Shariah Review of Trust Modaraba managed by Al-Zamin Modaraba Management 
(Private) Limited for the financial year ended 30th June 2022 in accordance with the requirements of 
the Shariah Compliance and Shariah Audit Mechanism for Modarabas, in my opinion:

i. The Modaraba has introduced a mechanism which has strengthened the Shariah compliance, in 
letter and spirit and the systems, procedures and policies adopted by the Modaraba are in line 
with the Shariah Principles;

ii. The agreements entered into by the Modaraba are Shariah compliant and the financing 
agreements have been executed on the formats as approved by the Religious Board and all the 
related conditions have been met.

iii. To the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the business 
transactions undertaken by the Modaraba and all other matters incidental thereto are in 
conformity with the Shariah requirements as well as the requirements of the Prospectus, Islamic 
Financial Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan and the Shariah Compliance and Shariah 
Audit Regulations for Modarabas.

iv. No earnings have been realized by any means prohibited by Shariah.

In my opinion, the operations of Trust Modaraba are in conformity with the Shariah

Compliance and Audit Mechanism for Modarabas.

Karachi

September 28th, 2022.
Stamp of Shariah Advisor

Signature

Muhammad Zubair Usmani
Jamia Darul Uloom Karachi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
TRUST MODARABA

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED 
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of 
Directors of Trust Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the 
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Modaraba. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the 
status of the Modaraba’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does 
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Modaraba’s personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Modaraba to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of 
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective 
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on 
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Modaraba’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Modaraba to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review 
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements 
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance 
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board 
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out 
procedures to assess and determine the Modaraba’s process for identification of related parties 
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Modaraba’s compliance, in all 
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the 
Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants

Karachi.

Date: September 28th, 2022.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Trust Modaraba (the Modaraba) as at June 
30, 2022 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash 
flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part 
thereof (hereinafter referred to as the financial statements), for the year then ended and we 
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

These financial statements are the Modaraba Company’s [Al-Zamin Modaraba Management 
(Private) Limited] responsibility who is also responsible to establish and maintain a system of 
internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the 
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the 
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 
1980), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant 
estimates made by the Modaraba Company, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a) a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba 
Company in respect of Trust Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and 
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI OF 1980), and the 
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981;

b) in our opinion;

 (i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba 
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, (XXXI of 1980) and the Modaraba 
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, and are in agreement with the books of 
account and are further in agreement with accounting policies consistently applied;

 (ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Modaraba’s 
business; and

 (iii) the business conducted, investments made, and the expenditure incurred during the 
year were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba;
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c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive 
income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes 
forming part thereof confirm with the approved accounting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Modaraba companies and the 
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance ,1980 (XXXI of 1980) and the Modaraba 
Companies and the Modaraba Rules, 1981 in the manner so required and respectively 
give a true and fair view of the state of the Modaraba’s affairs as at June 30, 2022 and 
of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) No zakat was deducted at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 20.3.1 to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2022, which inter alia states the details of land which is in the ownership but not in the 
possession of the Modaraba. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

The financial statements of Trust Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2021 were audited 
by other auditor who issued an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 
September 16, 2021.

Date: September 28, 2022   

Karachi

UDIN: AR202210126Ffze3IZBt

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner:
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

2022 2021

Note -------------------------Rupees-------------------------

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

16

11
13
17
18
19
20

21
22
23
24
25
26

23
24
25

27
28

29
30

31

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Short term murabaha finances - secured
Ijarah rental receivables - secured
Stock in trade
Current portion of long term murabaha finances
Short term musharakah finances (secured - considered good)
Current portion of diminishing musharakah finances
Deferred taxation
Income tax refundable

Assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Murabaha finances
Diminishing musharakah financing
Deposits
Investments
Investment property
Fixed assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 
Unclaimed profit distributions
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Current portion of deferred income on murabaha
Current portion of customers' security deposits
Current portion of lease liabilities against right of use assets
Due to director 
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income on murabaha
Customers' security deposits
Lease liabilities against right of use assets
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities 
NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Certificate capital
Reserves
Total equity

Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
 

Contingencies and commitments

BALANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

 7,690,515 
 32,908,149 
 28,291,113 

 30,990,535 
 4,048,929 

 -   
 79,992,821 
 23,689,845 

 1,704,637 
 1,160,917 

 3,072,891 
 213,550,352 

 8,625,000 
 222,175,352 

 19,195,330 
 2,773,749 
 1,106,562 
 7,281,478 

 -   
 163,055,963 
 193,413,082 
 415,588,434 

 12,834,792 
 11,361,125 
 6,698,560 
 8,810,600 

 430,555 
 5,000,000 

 45,135,632 

 2,366,206 
 45,071,713 

 1,964,011 
 49,401,930 

 94,537,562 
 321,050,872 

 298,000,000 
 28,579,554 

 326,579,554 

 (5,528,682)
 -   

 321,050,872 

 5,394,699 
 26,057,529 
 23,568,097 
 41,750,837 
 16,549,899 

 429,561 
 77,841,930 
 26,792,292 

 651,731 
 -   

 4,777,383 
 223,813,958 
 13,805,000 

 237,618,958 

 13,175,768 
 241,302 
 707,962 

 10,515,018 
 8,469,000 

 108,082,311 
 141,191,361 

 378,810,319 

 12,889,720 
 3,742,653 
 5,143,468 
 8,330,765 

 -   
 -   

 30,106,606 

 1,746,246 
 31,345,731 

 -   
 33,091,977 

 63,198,583 
 315,611,736 

 298,000,000 
 17,882,962 

 315,882,962 

 (2,728,426)
 2,457,200 

 315,611,736 

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

TRUST MODARABA Annual Report 202225



For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

2022 2021

Note -----------------------Rupees-----------------------

32
33
34
35
36

37

6.3

16

38

39

40

41

Income from ijarah - net
Profit on murabaha finances
Profit on musharakah finances
Income from investments - net
Other income

Provision for doubtful receivables
Unrealized (loss) / gain on revaluation of financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss

Fair value gain on asset held for sale

Operating expenses

Modaraba Management Company's fee

Workers' Welfare Fund

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

 15,656,639 
 10,764,230 
 6,293,903 

 431,113 
 42,632,887 
 75,778,772 

 (5,041,533)

 (12,474,396)

 53,550 
 58,316,393 

 (43,476,190)
 14,840,203 

 (1,484,020)

 (267,124)

 13,089,059 

 (1,723,826)

 11,365,233 

 0.38 

 9,748,839 
 10,831,033 
 5,764,166 
 8,414,326 
 9,557,743 
 44,316,107 

 -   

 1,146,910 

 -   
 45,463,017 

 (36,445,960)
 9,017,057 

 (901,706)

 (162,307)

 7,953,044 

 (1,346,478)

 6,606,566 

 0.22 

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

2022 2021

Note -----------------------Rupees-----------------------

29

Profit for the year  
  
Other comprehensive (loss) / income:
  
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 
account  
  
-   Net change in fair value of investments classified as  
    fair value through other comprehensive income - net of tax
  
"Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss 
account"  
  
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year   
  
Total comprehensive income for the year

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

 11,365,233 

 (2,800,256) 

 -   

 (2,800,256) 

 8,564,977 

 6,606,566 

 2,139,452 

 -   

 2,139,452 

 8,746,018 

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

2022 2021

Note -----------------------Rupees-----------------------

42

20.2

20.3

16.1

25
26
26
21

5

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations
Cash generated from operations

Decrease / (Increase) in non-current assets:
- Long term murabaha finances
- Long term musharakah finances

(Decrease) / Increase in non-current liabilities:
- Deferred income on murabaha
- Customers security deposits

Purchase of ijarah assets
Long term deposits
Proceeds from disposal of ijarah assets
Income tax paid / deducted

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of owned assets
Proceeds from disposal of owned assets
Proceeds from disposal of assets classified as held for sale
(Purchase) / disposal of investments - net
Dividends received
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment made against lease liability
Loan obtained from a director
Loan repaid to director
Profit distributed to certificate holders

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

 
90,337,868 

 (14,827,750) 
 (3,685,469) 

 2,175,052 
 26,416,532 

 (106,776,227) 
 (171,200) 

 16,046,219 
 (1,590,417) 

 7,924,608 

 (1,103,050) 
 313,313 

 9,810,000 
 (20,599,653) 

 1,705,750 

 (9,873,640) 

(700,224) 
 10,000,000 

 (5,000,000) 
 (54,928) 

 4,244,848 

 2,295,816 

 5,394,699 

 7,690,515 

 
26,541,494 

 (14,336,281) 
 598,411 

 2,364,658 
 16,778,681 

 (48,755,681) 
 851,200 

 11,780,546 
 (615,823) 

 (4,792,795) 

 (3,605,708) 
 3,199,738 

 -   
 1,446,528 
 1,210,874 

 2,251,432 

(155,743) 
 -   
 -   

 (1,581) 

 (157,324) 

 (2,698,687) 

 8,093,386 

 5,394,699 

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Trust Modaraba (the Modaraba) was formed in Pakistan under the Modaraba Companies and 
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the rules framed thereunder and is being 
managed by Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited (AZMML). The Modaraba 
commenced its business operations on November 12, 1991. It is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Modaraba is perpetual, multi-purpose and multi-dimensional, engaged in the business of Murabaha, 
Musharakah and Ijarah arrangement, investment in marketable securities, trading and other permissible 
businesses. The affairs, activities and transactions, performed by the modaraba during the year comply 
with the rules and principles of Islamic Sharia in the light of guidance and directives given by sharia 
advisor and are in accordance with the guideline issued by advisor of the registrar modaraba, SECP.

The principal place of business and registered office is located at 104-106, Kassam Court, BC-9, 
Block-5, Clifton, Karachi - 75600 while regional office is located at 301 & 320, 3rd Floor, Garden 
Heights, 8-Aibak Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan 
comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS) 
and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs), as are notified under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 and requirement of 
Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba 
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and Modaraba Regulations, 2021 for Modaraba 
(hereinafter referred to as the relevant laws). Until previous years, Modaraba was also 
following the requirement of Prudential Regulations for Modaraba, which are now replaced 
by Modaraba Regulations, 2021. There are no material adjustments requiring upon adoption 
of Modaraba Regulation, 2021 in place of Prudential Regulations for modarabas.

Wherever the requirements of the approved accounting standards differ from the relevant laws, 
the relevant laws have been followed.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared and presented in Pak Rupees which is the Modaraba's 
functional and presentation currency. All the figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, 
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except investments, 
investment property, assets held for sale, lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. Investments and  
investment property are measured at fair value. Assets held for sale are measured at lower of fair value 
less cost to sell or carrying value. Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets are initially measured at the 
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date. Basis of measurement 
has been discussed in related notes 4.4, 4.20 , 4.19 and 4.11.1 respectively. These financial statements 
have been prepared following accrual basis accounting except for cash flow information.

1

2.2

2.3

2

2.1
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Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be 
relevant to the Modaraba and adopted in the current year

The Modaraba has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards 
and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the current year.

Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020
IFRS 3 - References to Conceptual Framework
IAS 16 - Proceeds before intended use
IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract
IFRS 16 - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
IFRS-9 Financial instruments

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be 
relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Modaraba.
The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be 
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2)
IAS 8 - 'Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Modaraba is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and 
interpretations to the published standards on the financial statements of the Modaraba.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet 
notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) 
which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' and amendments to IFRS 17

2.4

2.4.1

2.4.2

January 1, 2023

January 1, 2023

January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023

January 1, 2023

Effective Date
(Annual periods beginning on or after)New or Revised Standard or Interpretation

Effective Date
(Annual periods beginning on or after)Annual periods beginning on or after

IASB Effective Date
(Annual periods beginning on or after)Standard or Interpretation

January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2020
January 1, 2020

April 1, 2021
January 1, 2021
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its 
judgment in the process of applying the Modaraba’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments 
are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and 
in any future period affected. In the process of applying the Modaraba’s accounting policies, the 
management has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the 
financial statements:

Useful lives, pattern of flow of economic benefits and impairment

The Modaraba’s management determines the useful lives and related depreciation charge, the 
residual values and impairment of its fixed assets on regular basis. These are reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumption of the 
future economic benefits embodied in the assets and the residual values, the same is changed to 
reflect the changed pattern. Such change is accounted for as change in accounting estimate in 
accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors”.

Provision against non performing financing

The Modaraba reviews its overdue receivables from ijarahs, murabahas and musharakahs at each 
reporting date to assess whether provision should be recorded in the profit and loss account, in 
addition to the mandatory provisions required in accordance with the Prudential Regulations 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. In particular, judgment by 
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when 
determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a 
number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision. 
Income recognition on musharakah and Murabaha is suspended when it is past due by ninety 
days or more and classified as suspense income.

Impairment of other financial assets

Provision is recognized based on management judgment regarding the recoverability of balance 
under expected credit loss method. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off 
when identified.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Modaraba reviews its provisions and contingencies at each reporting date to assess whether 
provision should be recorded in the profit and loss account. In particular, judgment by 
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when 
determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a 
number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.

3

3.2

3.1

3.3

3.4
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NRV of stock in trade

The Modaraba reviews the net realizable value of items of stock in trade to assess any possible 
impairment on annual basis. Net realizable value is estimated with reference to the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to make the sale. 
Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective stock in 
trade with corresponding effects on the provision for impairment, if any.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, except for the 
adoption of IFRS 9 as mentioned in note 4.1 below:

Change in accounting policy - Adoption of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'

Effective from July 1, 2021, the Modaraba has adopted the requirement of IFRS 9, 'Financial 
Instruments' with respect to Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The ECL has an impact on the 
assets of the Modaraba which are exposed to credit risk. Provision for non-performing Islamic 
financing is made in accordance with the Modaraba Regulation, 2021 for modarabas issued by 
SECP vide SRO 284 (I) / 2021 dated March 05, 2021 and subsequent amendments made therein, 
and is charged to profit and loss account. Upon adoption of ECL model under IFRS 9, the 
Modaraba while recognizing provisioning for impaired assets has considered the amount which is 
higher of :

- the provisioning required under the Modaraba Regulation, 2021; and

- the provisioning required under IFRS 9 using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model

The Modaraba has adopted the requirements of ECL model as given in IFRS 9 using the modified 
retrospective approach. Accordingly, the cumulative impact of adoption has been recognised in 
the accumulated losses of current year and comparitive figures have not been restated.

The impacts of applying ECL approach on the current year figures in profit and loss account and 
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement are as 
follows:

- Decrease in earnings per certificate

Impact on statement of changes in equity:

- Increase in accumulated losses

The Modaraba applies the IFRS 9 general approach to measure Expected Credit Losses (ECL) for 
Ijarah, Murabaha and Diminishing Musharika. A lifetime ECL is recorded on Ijarah, Murabaha and 
diminishing musharika in which there have been Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) from the 
date of initial recognition and which are credit impaired as on the reporting date. A 12 months 
ECL is recorded for Ijarah, Murabaha and diminishing musharika which do not meet the criteria 
for SICR or "credit impaired" as at the reporting date. To assess whether there is a significant 
increase in  credit  risk  the  Modaraba  compares  the  risk  of  a  default  occurring  on  the  asset  
as  at  the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. The 
Modaraba also considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information in 
determination of ECL.

3.5

4

 (0.01)

 (3,125,841)

4.1
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow 
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with banks.

Advances, deposits and prepayments and other receivables

Advances, deposits and prepayments are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of the 
consideration paid together with the associated transaction cost. Trade and other receivables are 
initially measured at original invoice amount.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include loans to / receivable from employees, long term deposits, trade 
receivables, advances, deposits and other receivables, cash and bank balances, murabaha finances, 
ijarah rental receivables, investments, creditors, accrued and other liabilities.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized and 
derecognized, as applicable, using trade-date accounting or settlement date accounting.

Classification

The management determines the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial 
recognition and classifies its financial assets in the following three categories:

a) Financial assets at amortized cost

 A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if the financial asset is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

 "A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the financial 
asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.

 Upon initial recognition, the Modaraba can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments 
as equity instruments designated at FVOCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 
32 Financial Instruments Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is 
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis."

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

 A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at 
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. However, the 
Modaraba can make an irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in 
equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss to 
present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income unless these are held 
for trading in which case these have to be measured at fair value through profit or loss. The 
equity investments of the Modaraba held in short term investments are classified at fair value 
through profit or loss because they are frequently traded while equity investments in long 
term investments are classified at fair value through other comprehensive income because the 
Modaraba intends to held these to collect dividends.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.4.1

4.4.1.1
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Reclassification

When the Modaraba changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all 
affected financial assets accordingly. The Modaraba applies the reclassification prospectively from 
the reclassification date.

In case of reclassification out of the amortized cost measurement category to fair value through 
profit or loss measurement category, fair value of the financial asset is measured at the 
reclassification date. Any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized 
cost and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit or loss measurement category to the 
amortized cost measurement category, fair value of the financial asset at the reclassification date 
becomes its new gross carrying amount.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement 
category to the amortized cost measurement category, the financial asset is reclassified at its fair 
value at the reclassification date. However, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in 
other comprehensive income is removed from equity and adjusted against the fair value of the 
financial asset at the reclassification date. The effective interest rate and the measurement of 
expected credit losses are not adjusted as a result of the reclassification.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit or loss measurement category to the fair 
value through other comprehensive income measurement category, the financial asset continues 
to be measured at fair value.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement 
category to the fair value through profit or loss measurement category, the financial asset 
continues to be measured at fair value. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment 
at the reclassification date.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are 
recognized on trade-date that is the date on which the Modaraba commits to purchase or sell the 
asset.

Except for receivables from Modaraba's main operations, financial assets are initially recognized 
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or 
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value 
and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Dividend income from financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in the profit and loss account when the 
Modaraba's right to receive payments is established. Receivables from Modaraba's main 
operations are initially measured at the transaction price if these do not contain a significant 
financing component in accordance with IFRS 15. Where the Modaraba uses settlement date 
accounting for an asset that is subsequently measured at amortized cost, the asset is recognized 
initially at its fair value on the trade debt.

4.4.1.2
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Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest 
method. Gain or loss on financial assets not part of hedging relationship is recognized in profit 
and loss account when the financial asset is derecognized, reclassified, through the amortization 
process or in order to recognize impairment gains or losses.

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified and 
the renegotiation or modification does not result in the derecognition of that financial asset, the 
Modaraba recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes a 
modification gain or loss in profit and loss account.

Financial assets ‘at fair value through other comprehensive income’ are marked to market using 
the closing market rates and are carried in the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses 
arising on changes in fair values of these financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive 
income. Interest calculated using the effective interest rate method is credited to the statement of 
profit or loss account. Dividends on equity instruments are credited to the statement of profit and 
loss account when the Modaraba’s right to receive payments is established.

Financial assets ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ are marked to market using the closing 
market rates and are carried in the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on 
changes in fair values of these financial assets are taken to the profit and loss account in the period 
in which these arise. Fair values of quoted investments are based on current prices. Fair value 
hierarchies are described in note 4.18.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when:

- the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or

- the Modaraba has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under 
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

  a) the Modaraba has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

  b) the Modaraba has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in 
profit or loss.

When the Modaraba has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and 
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Modaraba continues to 
recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the 
Modaraba also recognizes an associated liability which cannot be offset with the related asset. The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Modaraba has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured 
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 
consideration that the Modaraba could be required to repay.

4.4.1.3

4.4.1.4
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If the Modaraba's continuing involvement is in only a part of a financial asset, the Modaraba allocates 
the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognize under 
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of 
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the 
part that is no longer recognized and the consideration received for the part no longer recognized is 
recognized in profit and loss account.

Impairment of financial assets

The Modaraba directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when it has no 
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

The Modaraba recognizes the impairment at each reporting date for outstanding Ijarah, murabaha 
and musharakah receivables on the basis of Prudential Regulations issued for Modarabas by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Loss allowance calculated under IFRSs is 
compared with the impairment calculated on the basis of Prudential Regulations.

For other financial assets, the Modaraba recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a 
financial asset measured at amortized cost and through other comprehensive income. In case of 
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, loss allowance is 
recognized in other comprehensive income and carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance 
sheet is not reduced.

The Modaraba measures, at each reporting date, the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an 
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has 
increased significantly since initial recognition. Where the credit risk on a financial instrument has not 
increased significantly since the initial recognition, the Modaraba measures the loss allowance for that 
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

The Modaraba uses the simplified approach and measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 
lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables or contract assets that result from transactions 
under IFRS 15 and lease receivables.

The Modaraba recognizes the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal), that is required to adjust 
the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized, in the profit 
and loss account.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost except for 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a 
financial asset does not qualify for derecognition.

The Modaraba does not reclassify any of its financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value minus transaction costs for all financial liabilities 
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are credited in the profit and loss 
account.

4.4.1.5

4.4.2

4.4.2.1
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Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, are subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term.

The amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of financial 
liability is presented in other comprehensive income and the remaining amount of change in the fair 
value of the liability is presented in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if it eliminates or significantly reduces a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency or a group of financial liabilities is managed and its 
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management 
or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that basis to the 
Modaraba's key management personnel. The Modaraba has not designated any financial liability as 
at fair value through profit or loss.

All other liabilities

All other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as 
well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortization is included as finance costs in profit and loss account.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit and loss 
account. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or 
liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.

If the Modaraba repurchases a part of a financial liability, the Modaraba allocates the previous 
carrying amount of the financial liability between the part that continues to be recognized and the 
part that is derecognized based on the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the 
repurchase. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognized and the 
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, for the part 
derecognized is recognized in profit or loss.

4.4.2.2

4.4.2.3
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Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

A financial assets and a financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet if the Modaraba has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and intends 
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Murabaha and Musharakah arrangements

Murabaha arrangements

Modaraba obtains an undertaking (promise to purchase) from the client and purchases the requested 
assets / goods from third parties and takes possession of such goods / assets that are the subject 
matter of murabaha arrangements. However, the Modaraba can appoint the client as its agent to 
purchase the assets/goods on its behalf. Thereafter, its sells these goods / assets to the client at cost 
plus the profit agreed upon in the promise. Murabaha sale is recorded at the invoiced amount and 
profit is recognized in accordance with IFAS-1 (Murabaha) to the extent of pro-rata portion of sale 
price received as compared to total agreed price. Profit on the portion of sale revenue not due for 
payment is deferred and recognized as liability. Goods purchased by the Modaraba but remained 
unsold, with the Modaraba constitute inventories, if any at reporting date.

Musharakah arrangements

The Modaraba measures the musharakah receivables on the basis of installments accrued during 
the year. The installments are accrued on pro-rata basis as per terms of the musharakah agreement 
between the Modaraba and customer.

Tangible fixed assets

Operating fixed assets in own use and related depreciation

Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to income by applying the straight-line method at the rates given in note 20.

Depreciation on additions to operating fixed assets is charged from the month in which the asset is 
acquired while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and 
improvements are capitalized. Gain/loss on disposal of assets is charged to current year’s income.

Assets given to customers on lease and related depreciation

Leased assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to income by applying the straight line method whereby the cost of an 
asset less salvage value is written off over the leased period, which is considered to be the 
estimated useful life of the asset. Depreciation on additions and disposals during the year is 
charged proportionately from the date of commencement of the lease to the date of its maturity 
/ termination. Gain/loss on disposal of assets is charged to current year’s income.

Assets given to customers held under Ijarah arrangements

Assets given to customers under ijarah arrangements are assets available / held for ijarah  which 
are accounted for as operating lease assets in accordance with IFAS-2 and are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Assets under ijarah arrangements are 
depreciated using the straight line basis over the period of lease term. In respect of additions and 
transfers during the year, depreciation is charged proportionately over the period of ijarah. 
Gain/loss on disposal of assets is charged to current year’s income.

4.4.3

4.6.2

4.6.3

4.6

4.6.1

4.5

4.5.1

4.5.2
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Impairment of assets

The Modaraba assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any indication of impairment. If 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is 
recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognized in the profit and loss account. A previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment 
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the profit and loss 
account. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future 
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Stock in trade

Stock in trade for murabaha transactions

Murabaha transactions are entered into on customer order basis. The requested goods / assets are 
procured on customer request and are immediately transferred to the customer. Therefore, in 
normal circumstances, there is no inventory. However, unsold inventory, if any, is measured at 
lower of cost and net realizable value as at the reporting date. Cost is determined on weighted 
average basis.

Stock in trade for trading purpose

Stock in trade is measured at lower of cost and net realizable value as at the reporting date. Cost 
is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs 
necessary to be incurred in order to make a sale. If the net realizable value is lower than the 
carrying amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount 
exceeds its net realizable value. Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow 
moving stock in trade based on management estimate.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. 
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Ijarah assets acquired for own use

The Modaraba has entered into ijarah contracts under which it obtains usufruct of an asset for an 
agreed period for an agreed consideration. The ijarah contracts are undertaken in compliance 
with the Sharia essentials for such contracts.

The Modaraba accounts for its ijarah contracts in accordance with the requirements of IFAS 2 'Ijarah'. 
Accordingly, the Modaraba as a Mustaj'ir (lessee) in the Ijarah contract recognizes the Ujrah (lease) 
payments as an expense in the profit and loss on straight line basis over the ijarah term.

4.7

4.8

4.8.1

4.8.2

4.9

4.10
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Leases

For contracts entered into, or modified, on or after July 1, 2019; the Modaraba applies IFRS 16 to 
such transactions, except for the transactions where Modaraba is a lessor and the lease is an 
operating lease, and in such cases, the provisions of IFAS-2 are applied.  The Modaraba assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease or not at the inception of a contract. For lease contracts the 
Modaraba reassesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease further when the terms and 
conditions of the contract are modified.

The Modaraba determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with 
both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Modaraba is reasonably certain to 
exercise that option and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Modaraba is 
reasonably certain to not to exercise that option.

The Modaraba reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, or not 
to exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a significant 
change in circumstances that is within the control of the Modaraba and affects whether the 
Modaraba is reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously included in its determination 
of the lease term, or not to exercise an option previously included in the determination of the 
lease term.

The Modaraba revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

Modaraba as a lessee

Recognition

The Modaraba recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date. A 
commencement date is the date on which the lessor makes an underlying asset available for use 
by the lessee (the Modaraba).

The Modaraba has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term 
leases of all underlying assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the 
underlying asset, when new, is of low-value as per the threshold set by the Modaraba. The 
Modaraba recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial measurement

Lease liability

At the commencement date, the Modaraba measures the lease liability at the present value of the 
lease payments that are not paid. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease, or the Modaraba's incremental borrowing rate if the implicit rate is not 
readily available. Generally, the Modaraba uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount 
rate.

Lease payments comprise fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable; variable lease 
payments that depend on an index or a rate; amounts expected to be payable by the Modaraba 
under residual value guarantees; the exercise price of a purchase option if the Modaraba is 
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if 
the lease term reflects the Modaraba exercising an option to terminate the lease.

4.11

4.11.1
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Right-of-use asset

The Modaraba initially measures the right-of-use asset at cost. This cost comprises the amount of 
lease liability as initially measured, plus any lease payments made on or before the 
commencement date, less lease incentives received, initial direct costs and estimated terminal costs 
(i.e. dismantling or other site restoration costs required by the terms and conditions of the lease 
contract).

Subsequent measurement 

Lease liability

After the commencement date, the Modaraba re-measures the lease liability to reflect the effect 
of interest on outstanding lease liability, lease payments made, reassessments and lease 
modifications etc. Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability 
and interest on lease liability are recognized in the profit or loss account, unless these are included 
in the carrying amount of another asset.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 
using the incremental borrowing rate implicit in the lease to achieve a constant rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability.

Lease liability payable in foreign currency is translated to local currency of the Modaraba at the 
reporting date. Any foreign exchange differences arising on translation of lease liability are 
recognized in profit or loss.

Right-of-use asset

After the commencement date, the Modaraba measures the right-of-use asset at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated identified impairment losses, if any, adjusted for any 
remeasurement of the lease liability.

The Modaraba depreciates the cost of right-of-use asset, net of residual value, from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end 
of the lease term. However, if the lease contract transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the 
Modaraba by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the 
Modaraba will exercise the purchase option, the Modaraba depreciates the right-of-use asset from 
the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss account at rates given in note 20.2.

Modaraba as a lessor

Leases in which the Modaraba does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Such leases are treated under IFAS-2 and 
the accounting policy for assets given to customers under ijarah arrangements (Note 4.6.3) is 
applied for such leases.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from ijarah and murabaha is recognized as per the requirements of the Islamic Financial 
Accounting Standards (IFASs). Repayment schedule is agreed at the start. Payments are usually 
due over the period of contract at different dates.

4.11.2

4.12
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Murabaha profit

Profit on transactions under murabaha arrangements is recognized on a pro-rata basis taking into 
account the elapsed duration for payment of murabaha amounts payable by the customer. Profit 
not due for payment in the current year is deferred by accounting for unearned murabaha income 
with corresponding credit to deferred murabaha income which is recorded as a liability. The same 
is then recognized as revenue on a time proportionate basis as and when the due dates approach 
for payment of recoverable amounts by the customers.

Musharakah profit

Profit on diminishing musharakah transactions is recognized on accrual basis.

Ijarah rentals

Ijarah income is recognized in income on an accrual basis as and when the rental becomes due, 
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit of 
the use derived from the leased asset is diminished.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

Capital gain or loss

Capital gain or loss on sale of investments is recognized in the period in which it arises.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on dispatch of goods to customers.

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognized on time proportionate basis.

Return on deposit accounts

Return on deposit accounts is recognized on accrual basis.

Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking 
into account applicable tax credit, rebates and exemption available, if any as per Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

Deferred taxation is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method providing for 
temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary timing differences and 
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated based on the rates that have been enacted or notified for subsequent 
enactment up to the reporting date and are expected to apply to the period when the difference arises.

4.13
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Post employment benefits

The Modaraba maintains a defined contribution plan for post employment benefits and operates 
an approved provident fund for all its employees. The Modaraba and the employees both make 
equal monthly contributions to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary of employees.

Dividend - Profit distribution and other appropriations of profit

Dividend distribution to the Modaraba’s certificate holders is recognized as a liability in the 
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Modaraba 
Management Company. Transfer to statutory reserve and any of the mandatory appropriations 
as may be required by law are recognized in the period to which these relate.

Appropriations to statutory reserves declared / approved subsequent to balance sheet date are 
considered as non-adjusting event and are not recorded in financial statements of the current 
year. These are recognized in the year in which these are declared / approved.

Earnings per certificate

The Modaraba presents basic and diluted earnings per certificate (EPC). Basis EPC is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders of the Modaraba by the 
weighted average number of ordinary certificates outstanding during the year. Diluted EPC is 
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary certificates outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary certificates, if any.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

a) that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses 
(including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same 
entity);

b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker 
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; 
and

c) for which discrete financial information is available.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 
the chief operating decision-maker. The Chief Executive Officer of the Modaraba has been 
identified as Chief Operating Decision Maker.

The Modaraba is divided into five operating segments:
-  Murabaha finances; 
-  Ijarah finances;
-  Musharakah finances;
-  Investments; and
-  Trading of stock.

All these operating segments are located in Pakistan.

4.14
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Segment assets and liabilities

The assets of a segment include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of 
receivables and fixed assets, net of allowances and provisions. Segment liabilities are primarily 
unallocable.

Allocation of segment expenses

All identifiable expenses are directly attributed to the respective segments.

Fair value measurement

The Modaraba measures certain financial instruments, and non-financial assets such as investment 
properties, at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in 
its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Modaraba has access at that date. The 
fair value of a liability reflects the effect of non-performance risk. When applicable, the Modaraba 
measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that 
instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with 
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

When measuring fair value, the Modaraba takes into account the characteristics of asset or liability 
which include the condition and location of the asset and restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of 
the asset.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Modaraba uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Valuation techniques used to measure fair value are applied consistently unless a change in a 
valuation technique or its application results in a measurement that is equally or more 
representative of fair value in the circumstances. Revisions resulting from a change in the 
valuation technique or its application are accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

4.17.1

4.17.2

4.18
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4.19

4.20

Fair value hierarchy categorizes into following three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used 
to measure fair value:

- Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
Modaraba can access at the measurement date.

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Modaraba has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 
of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately and measured at the lower 
of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as held for sale and their fair 
value less costs to sell. However, some held for sale assets such as financial assets or deferred tax 
assets, continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s relevant accounting policy for 
those assets. Once classified as held for sale, the assets are not subject to depreciation or 
amortization.

Valuation of investment properties

The Modaraba reviews the fair value of investment property at each reporting date. The fair 
value is determined based on market values; being the estimated amount for which a property 
could be exchanged on the date of valuation between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's 
length transaction.
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5

5.1

5.2

This include bank account maintained by Modaraba with State Bank of Pakistan as per the 
requirement of BSD circular No. 04. for recovering CIB service charges having balance of Rs 
12,317 (2021: 10,414).

These carry profit at rates ranging from 2.84 % to 6.50% (2021: 2.75% to 2.84%) per annum.

Cash and Bank Balances

 - Current accounts
 - Saving accounts

Balances with dividend account
Balances with banks - total
Cash in hand

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

5.1
5.2

21.1

 13,939 
 3,116,919 

 3,130,858 
 4,531,160 
 7,662,018 

 28,497 
 7,690,515 

 161,388 
 5,077,166 
 5,238,554 

 148,787 
 5,387,341 

 7,358 
 5,394,699 

6

6.1 These represent 55,901 (2021: 55,901) number of units held as at the reporting date. Average cost 
of these units as at the reporting date amounts to Rs. 631,503 (2021: Rs. 631,503). 

Short Term Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

NIT Islamic Unit Fund
Shares of listed companies

6.1
6.2

 431,563 
 32,476,586 
 32,908,149 

 540,868 
 25,516,661 

 26,057,529 

TRUST MODARABA Annual Report 202247



6.2 Shares of listed companies

Unless otherwise stated, the holdings are in fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

June 30, 2022Number of shares Name of Investee June 30, 2021

Average
Cost

Market
Value

Average
Cost

Market
Value

----------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------

 786,867

 2,173,016

 1,267,186

 1,521,156

 1,622,511

 3,324,124

 6,883,339

 279,856

 686,386

 615,106

 111,991

 3,151,994

 1,605,303

 1,169,556

 1,838,561

 338,570

 1,385,967

 532,946

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 29,294,435

 769,350

 1,840,000

 1,179,200

 1,044,900

 1,071,600

 3,039,050

 5,781,600

 266,000

 592,813

 496,540

 115,410

 2,799,000

 1,569,570

 1,104,870

 1,710,540

 296,000

 1,335,588

 504,630

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 25,516,661

 2,508,071

 2,326,055

 2,525,849

 1,521,156

 1,622,511

 3,324,124

 6,372,095

 409,163

 686,386

 625,949

 -  

 3,151,994

 5,582,675

 3,283,764

 2,484,976

 338,570

 1,953,861

 -   

 1,282,273

 935,786

 1,065,627

 1,310,107

 476,850

 3,252,003

 1,579,606

 48,619,451

 12,500

 90,000

 22,500

 90,000

 120,000

 35,000

 32,500

 32,000

 5,154

 19,000

 -  

 30,000

 14,000

 24,000

 25,000

 25,000

 52,000

 -   

 13,000

 41,500

 13,000

 7,000

 5,000

 5,200

 40,000

 2,197,250

 1,275,300

 1,390,275

 480,600

 504,000

 2,362,850

 3,839,225

 285,120

 477,054

 298,300

 -  

 2,205,300

 3,535,980

 2,393,760

 1,966,750

 173,750

 1,043,640

 -   

 803,400

 931,675

 1,012,830

 1,202,880

 341,250

 2,387,008

 1,368,389

 32,476,586

 3,000

 80,000

 10,000

 90,000

 120,000

 35,000

 33,000

 20,000

 5,154

 18,500

 1,000

 30,000

 3,000

 6,500

 18,000

 25,000

 30,000

 3,000

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  

2022 2021

Attock Refinery Limited

Fauji Cement Co. Ltd.

D.G. Khan Cement Co. Ltd.

Cenergyico Pk Limited

Hascol Petroleum Ltd.

Pakistan Petroleum Ltd.

Shell Pakistan Ltd.

Sui Southern Gas Co. Ltd.

Dawood Hercules Corp Ltd

Descon Oxychem Ltd.

Meezan Bank Ltd.

Nishat Mills Limited

National Refinary Ltd.

Netsol Technologies Ltd.

Oil & Gas Development Co.

PTCL

Unity Foods Ltd

Sazgar Engineering Works Ltd.

Century Paper & Board Mills

Allied Rental Modaraba

Avanceon Limited

Pakistan State Oil Co. Ltd.

Frieslandcampins Engro Foods 

Lucky Cement Limited

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Ltd.
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7 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 
RECEIVABLES

Loans to / receivable from employees - considered good

Current portion of long term deposits

Prepayments

Advance against expenses

Accrued profit (secured - considered good)

Advances to suppliers - (considered good)

Trade receivables - considered good (secured)

Legal suits' charges receivable (secured - considered good)

Receivable against sale of Faisalabad Property

Sundry receivables (unsecured - considered good)

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

7.1

17

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

 585,000

 -   

 2,172,608

 250,000

 1,098,826

 20,420,000

 -   

 1,988,926

 669,000

 1,106,753

 28,291,113

 302,502

 227,400

 4,437,498

 -   

 1,019,939

 5,030,500

 7,964,773

 2,808,702

 -   

 1,776,783

 23,568,097

6.3 Unrealized loss on revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Unrealized loss on shares
Unrealized loss on mutual funds

June 30, 2022

Note ----------Rupees---------

6.3.1 
6.3.2 

 (12,365,091)
 (109,305)

 (12,474,396)

6.3.1 Unrealized loss on shares

Difference between market value and average cost  
 - Current year
 - Prior year

 (16,142,865)
 (3,777,774)
 (12,365,091)

6.3.2 Unrealized loss on mutual funds

Difference between market value and average cost  
 - Current year
 - Prior year

 (199,940)
 (90,635)

 (109,305)
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7.1

7.2 Accrued profit

Profit receivable on musharakah finances
Less: Suspended income

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

5.1
5.2

21.1

 1,270,606
 (171,780)
 1,098,826

 1,019,939
 -   

 1,019,939

7.3 Trade receivables

Opening balance
Bad debts - write off
Provision - write off
Received during the year
Gross amount
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

38.1
7.3.1

7.3.1

 7,964,773
 (5,600,071)

 (366,265)
 (1,898,437)

 100,000
 (100,000)

 -   

 10,610,210
 (1,847,579)

 (257,593)
 (74,000)

 8,431,038
 (466,265)
 7,964,773

7.3  Movement in provision for doubtful trade receivables

 Opening balance
 Charge for the year
Less: provision written off during the year
Closing balance

 466,265
 -   

 (366,265)
 100,000

 723,858
 - 

 (257,593)
 466,265

7.4.1 Movement in provision for doubtful legal suits'
charges  receivables
Opening balance
Provision made during the year
Less: provision written off during the year

 656,950
 243,526

 (433,550)
 466,926

 771,950
 -   

 (115,000)
 656,950

7.4 Legal suits' charges receivable
Opening balance
Expenses incurred
Write off - legal suits' charges receivable
Write off - provision
Legal suits' charges received during the year
Gross amount
Allowance for doubtful legal suits' charges receivables

38.1
7.4.1

7.4.1

 3,465,652
 495,000

 (753,750)
 (433,550)
 (317,500)
 2,455,852
 (466,926)
 1,988,926

 3,555,652
 25,000

 -   
 (115,000)

 -   
 3,465,652
 (656,950)
 2,808,702

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

This includes the loan given to and receivables from executives amounting to Rs. 0.50 million 
(2021: Rs. 0.17 million). The executives are included in the key management personnel of the 
Modaraba. The loans are provided for maximum period of six months period and deductible 
from employees salaries.

Maximum aggregate balance due from executives and employees, at the end of any month during 
the year, was Rs. 0.585 million (2021: Rs. 0.912 million).
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7.5 Sundry receivablest
Gross amount
Allowance for doubtful sundry receivables 7.5.1

 1,106,753
 -   

 1,106,753

 1,776,783
 -   

 1,776,783

7.5.1 Allowance for doubtful sundry receivables
Opening balance
Less: Provision written off during the year 7.5.1

 -   
 -   
 -   

 896,211
 (896,211)

 -   

8.4 Suspended income
Opening balance
Suspension transferred to long term murabaha
Suspension made during the year

11.3.1
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 428,000
 (428,000)

 -   
 -   

8.5 Provision for doubtful receivables 
Opening balance 
Provision made during the year 
Written off during the year

37.1
 8,400,000
 3,010,411

 -   
 11,410,411

 28,700,300
 -   

 (20,300,300)
 8,400,000

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

SHORT TERM MURABAHA FINANCES -  SECURED

8.2
8.4

8.5

 2,721,927

 -   
 39,679,019

 -   
 39,679,019
 (11,410,411)
 30,990,535

10,471,818

 4,036,596
 35,642,423

 -   
 39,679,019

 (8,400,000)
 41,750,837

Considered good
Considered doubtful:
- Regular parties
- Parties under litigation
- Suspended income

Provision for doubtful receivables

The Modaraba has sold goods under Murabaha arrangements whereby payment is deferred along 
with specified profit margin. These finances are secured by way of hypothecation of stocks, mort-
gage of properties, demand promissory notes, charge on assets and personal guarantees.

These represent receivables from 4 (2021: 3) customers under Murabaha finance. Legal proceedings 
against these customers are in process in the Honorable Courts of Law (Banking court of Lahore). 
The Courts have awarded decree in favor of Modaraba in 4 (2021: 3) cases for recovery of Rs. 
50.277 million (2021: Rs. 44.021 million).

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding during the year at any point is Rs 59,293,242. (2021:             
Rs. 53,318,785)
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9.2 Suspended ijarah income - considered doubtful
Opening balance
Written off during the year
Income suspended during the year
Reversal during the year

 3,537,194
 -   

 24,720
 (2,705,472)

 856,442

 17,900,639
 (14,363,445)

 -   
 -   

 3,537,194

9.3 Provision for doubtful Ijarah rental receivables
Opening balance
Written off during the year
Effect of change in accounting policy 
Closing balances

37.1
 -   
 -   

 570,193
 570,193

 2,958,183
 (2,958,183)

 -   
 -   

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

9

9.1

IJARAH RENTAL RECEIVABLES - SECURED

9.1

9.2
9.3

 319,733
 5,155,831
 (856,442)
 (570,193)
 4,048,929

 2,583,809
 17,503,284
 (3,537,194)

 -   
 16,549,899

Considered good
Parties under litigation - Considered doubtful
Suspended ijarah income - Considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful ijarah rental receivables

These are secured against ijarah assets and personal guarantees. In some ijarahs, additional collateral 
is also obtained in the form of mortgaged property. The Modaraba is entitled to repossess and sell 
the ijarah assets in case of default by the customers.

11

11.1

11.2

MURABAHA FINANCES - SECURED

11.3
11.4

 69,047,726
 36,797,722
 (6,657,297)

 99,188,151
 (79,992,821)

 19,195,330

 53,314,776
 40,763,081
 (3,060,159)
 91,017,698

 (77,841,930)
 13,175,768

Considered good
Considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful long term murabaha finances

Current / overdue portion shown under current assets

The Modaraba has sold goods under murabaha arrangements whereby payment is deferred along 
with specified profit margin. These finances are secured by way of hypothecation stocks, mortgage of 
properties, demand promissory notes, charge on assets and personal guarantees.

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding during the year at any point is Rs 109,562,978. (2021:               
Rs. 101,987,154)

10 STOCK IN TRADE
Potatoes
Less: Stock write off

10.1
38

 429,561
 (429,561)

 -   

 429,561
 -   

 429,561

10.1 These represent finished goods obtained for the purpose of trading business.
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11.3.1 Suspended income
Opening balance
Reversal during the year
Suspension made during the year
Suspension transferred from short term

33
33
8.4

 1,857,818
 (568,293)

 -   
 -   

 1,289,525

 1,814,320
 (983,096)

 598,594
 428,000

 1,857,818

11.4 Provision for doubtful long term murabaha finances
Opening balance
Provision for the year
Effect of change in accounting policy due to IFRS-9
Closing balances

37.1
 3,060,159
 1,787,596
 1,809,542
 6,657,297

 3,060,159
 -   
 -   

 3,060,159

11.3 Break up of considered doubtful Murabaha finances
Considered doubtful
Suspended income 11.3.1

11.3.2

 38,087,247
 (1,289,525)
 36,797,722

 42,620,899
 (1,857,818)
 40,763,081

11.3.2 The doubtful murabaha finances include receivables from 5 (2021:5) customers under murabaha 
finance which is under litigation. Legal proceedings against these customers are in process in the 
Courts of Law. The Courts have awarded decree in favor of Modaraba in 3 (2021: 3) cases for 
recovery of Rs. 60.673 million (2021: Rs. 60.673 million).

13.1

13.2

This represents facility given to 2 (2021:1) customers. The facilities are secured by way of asset. 
Customer will participate in cost ranging between 25% to 50% in purchasing the musharakah asset.

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding during the year at any point is Rs 4,528,440. (2021:               
Rs 1,405,952)

2022 2021
Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

12 SHORT TERM MUSHARAKAH FINANCES - SECURED

12.1
 24,385,893

 (696,048)
 23,689,845

 26,792,292
 -   

 26,792,292

Considered good
Provision for short term Musharakah finances

13 DIMINISHING MUSHARAKAH FINANCING - SECURED
Considered good
Current / overdue portion grouped under current assets
 Provision for Diminishing Musharakah finances

13.1

13.3

 4,528,444
 (1,704,637)

 (50,058)
 2,773,749

 893,033
 (651,731)

 -   
 241,302

12.1 Provision for short term Musharakah finances
 Opening balance 
 Provision resulting from change in accounting policy 

 -   
 (696,048)
 (696,048)

 -   
 -   
 -   

13.3 Provision for Diminishing Musharakah finances
Opening balance 
Provision resulting from change in accounting policy

 -   
 (50,058)
 (50,058)

 -   
 -   
 -   
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14.1 Till June 30, 2021, the income of non-trading Modarabas is exempt from income tax provided that 
not less than 90% of their profit are distributed to the certificate holders. The tax clause which 
provides for such exemption has been omitted through Tax Laws (Second) Amendment Ordinance, 
2021. As a result of withdrawal of tax exemption, there are implications of deferred tax which have 
been assessed.

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

14 DEFERRED TAXATION

12.1  7,500,659

 (3,309,019)
 (248,368)
 (29,000)

 (165,356)
 (135,409)

 (1,930,616)
 (201,854)

 (14,517)
 

(1,933,720)

(693,717)
 (1,160,917)

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 
 -   
 -   

-   

-   
-   

Taxable temporary difference in respect of:
Operating fixed assets given on lease / ijarah
Deductible temporary difference in respect of:
"Provision for classified receivables under prudential
   - Regulations for Modarabas"
Suspended ijarah income - considered doubtful 
Provision for trade receivable 
Provision for doubtful Ijarah rental receivables 
Provision for legal charges receivable 
Provision for doubtful Murabaha finances 
Provision for short term Musharakah finances 
Provision for Diminishing Musharakah finances 
Unrealized loss on revaluation of financial  
   - assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Unrealized loss on revaluation of financial assets at  
   - fair value through other comprehensive income

The properties were obtained by the Modaraba by taking possession of collateral held with the 
Modaraba as security against its receivables. Particulars of asset held for sale as at the reporting date 
are as follows:

16

19
16.1

51

 13,805,000
 8,469,000

 (13,702,550)
 53,550

 8,625,000

 -   
 13,805,000

 -   
 -   

 13,805,000

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Opening balance
Reclassification from investment properties
Disposal during the year
Fair value gain on revaluation
Closing balance

15
 3,072,891  4,777,383

INCOME TAX REFUNDABLE
Income tax refundable
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17

Security deposit for Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited
Security deposit for rented property
Less: current portion shown under current assets

Ijarah deposit money
Less: current portion shown under current assets

Others

7

 154,862
 210,000

 -   
 210,000
 706,900

 -   
 706,900

 34,800
 1,106,562

 154,862
 210,000

 -   
 210,000
 535,700

 (227,400)
 308,300

 34,800
 707,962

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

DEPOSITS

The Modaraba has no restrictions on the disposal of its properties and there are no contractual 
obligations to purchase, construct or develop properties or for repairs, maintenance and 
enhancements of any such properties.

Property
Type

Location Area Independent Valuer Fair Value Forced Sale
Value

Shops
District
Hyderabad 138 sq.ft.

W.W Engineering Services
(Pvt.) Limited 8,625,000 7,198,650

--------------Rupees---------------

Property
Type

Disposal of assets held for sale

Location

Land
Agriculture land

District Faisalabad
District Gujranwala

 3,305,000
 10,397,550
 13,702,550

 3,310,000
 6,500,000
 9,810,000

 5,000
 (3,897,550)
 (3,892,550)

----------------------------Rupees---------------------------

Fair value Sales proceeds Gain/ (loss)

16.1

Fair value measurements

There are no level 1 and level 3 assets or transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year 2022.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values

There is associated liabilities relating to assets held for sale.

Description Valuation Technique

Shops Research and analysis of the
neighborhood and calling the
leading realtors of the area.

Price per marla/
Price per sq. ft.

Reasonable
fair value
estimates

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs

Range
(weighted
average)

16.2

16.3

16.2.1
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14

18 INVESTMENTS

Long term investments at fair value through OCI
Investment in shares of listed companies
Unless otherwise stated, the holdings are in fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

June 30, 2022Number of shares Name of Investee June 30, 2021

Average
Cost

Market
Value

Average
Cost

Market
Value

----------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------

 5,806,704

 4,482,840

 1,029,049

 1,924,850

 13,243,443

 4,372,200

 3,639,308

 888,000

 1,615,510

 10,515,018

 5,806,704

 4,743,273

 1,029,049

 1,924,850

 13,503,876

 90,000

 21,500

 75,000

 17,000

 3,078,900

 2,343,930

 521,250

 1,337,398

 7,281,478

 90,000

 15,000

 75,000

 17,000

2022 2021

Sui Southern Gas Co. Ltd.

The Searle Company Limited

PTCL

Oil & Gas Development Co.

19

Opening balance
Reclassified to asset held for sale
Fair value gain on investment property
Closing balance

16
36

 8,469,000
 (8,469,000)

 -   
 -   

 20,405,000
 (13,805,000)

 1,869,000
 8,469,000

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
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20.4 Disposal of operating fixed assets

20.4.1 Disposal of fixed assets given on ijarah

Description Cost
Accumulated 
Depreciation

Book Value
Adjustment / 
Sale Proceeds

Gain Mode of Disposal Particulars of Buyer

Vehicles:
Motor Vehicle 1,495,000            1,195,000        300,000             300,000             -                   Term of ijarah agreement Nafees Traders
Motor Vehicle 825,000              660,000          165,000              165,000              -                   Term of ijarah agreement Nafees Traders
Motor Vehicle 1,627,000            1,138,900        488,100              488,100              -                   Term of ijarah agreement Pakistan Chemical & Bio Ind.
Motor Vehicle 1,094,000            875,200          218,800              218,800              -                   Term of ijarah agreement Pakistan Chemical & Bio Ind.
Motor Vehicle 1,175,000 800,000 375,000             375,000             -                   Term of ijarah agreement Naveed Tahir

Motor Vehicle 1,250,000 1,000,000 250,000             250,000             -                   Term of ijarah agreement Ali Husnain Nasir

Motor Vehicle 1,250,000 937,500 312,500              312,500              -                   Term of ijarah agreement Javed Latif

Motor Vehicle 1,782,500 1,143,780 638,720              678,115               39,395              Term of ijarah agreement Zahid Rafique

Motor Vehicle 1,800,000 1,234,200 565,800              565,800              -                   Term of ijarah agreement Urooj Usna Hussain

Motor Vehicle 756,000 467,124 288,876              336,184              47,308              Term of ijarah agreement Sain Bux

Motor Vehicle 1,900,000 1,700,000 200,000             200,000             -                   Term of ijarah agreement Syed Ali Mohsin Raza

Motor Vehicle 1,600,000 1,280,000 320,000             320,000             -                   Term of ijarah agreement Muhammad Suleman Azam
Motor Vehicle 141,500 126,485 15,015                 15,015                 -                   Term of ijarah agreement Ahsun Haider

Motor Vehicle 2,763,400 763,400 2,000,000          2,000,000          -                   Term of ijarah agreement Tehmina Khalid

Motor Vehicle 1,701,000 1,360,800 340,200             340,200             -                   Term of ijarah agreement Gasco Engineering (Pvt) Ltd.

Motor Vehicle 1,701,000 1,360,800 340,200             340,200             -                   Term of ijarah agreement Gasco Engineering (Pvt) Ltd.

Motor Vehicle 1,289,000 1,031,200 257,800              257,800              -                   Term of ijarah agreement Gasco Engineering (Pvt) Ltd.

Motor Vehicle 3,183,000 2,296,695 886,305              1,050,966           164,661             Term of ijarah agreement Snowhite Dry Cleaners

Motor Vehicle 3,183,000 2,301,987 881,013               1,041,284            160,271             Term of ijarah agreement Snowhite Dry Cleaners

Motor Vehicle 2,269,000 1,547,227 721,773              852,363              130,590            Term of ijarah agreement Snowhite Dry Cleaners

Motor Vehicle 2,125,000 1,374,200 750,800             988,848              238,048            Term of ijarah agreement Sabs The Salon

Motor Vehicle 3,489,500 2,296,325 1,193,175            1,412,037            218,862            Term of ijarah agreement Snowhite Dry Cleaners

Motor Vehicle 806,500 645,200 161,300               161,300               -                   Term of ijarah agreement Pacific Pharmaceuticals Limited

Motor Vehicle 806,500 645,200 161,300               161,300               -                   Term of ijarah agreement Pacific Pharmaceuticals Limited

Motor Vehicle 3,200,000 1,574,064 1,625,936           2,023,537           397,601            Term of ijarah agreement Sabs The Salon

Motor Vehicle 1,600,000 1,083,330 516,670              577,788              61,118               Term of ijarah agreement Zabihullah

Motor Vehicle 1,800,000 937,500 862,500              941,982              79,482              Term of ijarah agreement Shahid Ahmed Khan

Motor Vehicle 2,475,000 828,683 1,646,317            1,787,815            141,498             Term of ijarah agreement Snowhite Dry Cleaners

Motor Vehicle 1,161,100              696,672          464,428              1,185,000            720,572            Negotiation Mehmood Ahmed

Motor Vehicle 1,201,500             660,825          540,675              1,200,000           659,325            Negotiation Aijaz Khan

Motor Vehicle 1,769,800            557,327          1,212,473            1,570,000           357,527            Negotiation M. Aslam

Motor Vehicle 1,135,400             794,766          340,634              1,150,000            809,366            Negotiation Shakil Khan

Motor Vehicle 1,201,500             680,850          520,650              1,160,000            639,350            Negotiation Aijaz Khan

Motor Vehicle 1,180,700             787,120           393,580              1,290,000           896,420            Negotiation M. Tariq Khan

Motor Vehicle 1,161,100              793,409          367,691              1,215,000            847,309            Negotiation Naveen Zehra

57,899,000       37,575,769   20,323,231       26,931,934       6,608,703       

Plant and Machinery   

Plant and Machinery 34,500,000 34,500,000 -                     -                     -                   Term of ijarah agreement Sunshine Cloth Ltd

Plant and Machinery 5,217,000 4,500,000 717,000              717,000              -                   Term of ijarah agreement Asif Public School

Plant and Machinery 2,040,000 1,632,000 408,000             408,000             -                   Term of ijarah agreement Megatech Trackers (Pvt) Ltd

Plant and Machinery 1,000,000 800,000 200,000             200,000             -                   Term of ijarah agreement Allah Rakha Engineering Works

42,757,000 41,432,000 1,325,000 1,325,000 -                  

Total 2022 100,656,000 79,007,769 21,648,231 28,256,934 6,608,703

Total 2021 61,475,470 46,831,672 14,643,798 20,325,046 5,681,248

---------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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21

21.1

UNCLAIMED PROFIT DISTRIBUTIONS
Opening balance
Less: dividends paid
Closing balance

11.3.1
 12,889,720

 (54,928)
 12,834,792

 12,891,301
 (1,581)

 12,889,720

22 CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Payable to Modaraba Management
Company (Related party)
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund
Payable to SQZ Business Management Consultancy
(Private) Limited
Accrued expenses
Other liabilities

39

22.1

 1,484,020
 317,087

 -   
 232,156

 9,327,862
 11,361,125

 901,706
 212,270

 159,904
 1,243,421
 1,225,352
 3,742,653

Opening balance
Amount transferred during the year
Dividend claim received and settled
Received profit
Closing balance 5

 148,787
 4,304,494

 (346)
 78,225

 4,531,160

 148,787
 -   
 -   
 -   

 148,787

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

20.5 Right of use assets

38

 -   
 2,774,700
 2,774,700
 (508,695)
 2,266,005

 5 years
20%

 133,976
 -   

 133,976
 (133,976)

 -   

16 Months
N/A

Opening balance
Additions during the year

Depreciation charge for the year
Closing balance

Lease term
Depreciation rate

There are no variable lease payments in the lease contracts. There were no leases with residual value 
guarantees or leases not yet commenced to which the Modaraba is committed.

21.2 Management has maintained funds of Rs. 4,531,160 (2021: Rs. 148,787) against unclaimed profit 
distribution of Rs 12,834,792 (2021: 12,889,720) resulting shortage of funds of Rs 8,303,632. This 
shortage of funds of Rs 8,303,632 relates to unclaimed profit distribution when modaraba was 
managed by Trust management services (previous management company) from incorporation till 
2009 when change of management took place through appointment of administrator by registrar 
under section 19 and 20 of Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Flotation and Control) Ordi-
nance, 1980. Modaraba has maintained complete funds for unclaimed profit distribution after 
acquisition of Al-Zamin  Management Company Limited in 2009 till date.

Reconciliation of amount kept in separate bank account (current account) is as follows:
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23 DEFERRED INCOME ON MURABAHA
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Recognized during the year

Current portion shown as current liabilities

 6,889,714
 12,272,389

 (10,097,337)
 9,064,766

 (6,698,560)
 2,366,206

 4,525,056
 11,326,034
 (8,961,376)

 6,889,714
 (5,143,468)

 1,746,246

25 LEASE LIABILITIES AGAINST RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
Opening balance
Additions during the year

Add: interest expense
Less: payments made during the year
Gross liability
Less: current portion
Closing balance

 -   
 2,774,700
 2,774,700

 320,090
 (700,224)
 2,394,566
 (430,555)
 1,964,011

 153,052
 -   

 153,052
 2,691

 (155,743)
 -   
 -   
 -   

25.1 Maturity analysis of contractual cash flows

Undiscounted cash flows
Less: Discounting
Discounted Cash Flows

 2,600,285
 636,274

 1,964,011

  -   
  -   
  -   

 843,336
 412,780
 430,556

Later than
five years

 Within
one year

At June 30, 2022

 Later than
one year but
not later than

five years

--------------------------Rupees-------------------------

Opening balance
Additions during the year
Charity paid during the year
Closing balance

 183,219
 48,963

 (232,182)
 -   

 109,223
 313,996

 (240,000)
 183,219

It includes charity payable amounting to Rs. nil (2021: Rs. 183,219).

The reconciliation is as follows:

None of the directors and employees of the Modaraba Management Company have any inter-
est in the charity.

24

24.1

CUSTOMERS' SECURITY DEPOSITS
Opening balance
Received during the year 
Adjusted during the year 
Closing balance
Current portion shown as current liabilities

 39,676,496
 26,416,532

 (12,210,715)
 53,882,313
 (8,810,600)
 45,071,713

 31,442,315
 16,778,681

 (8,544,500)
 39,676,496
 (8,330,765)
 31,345,731

These represent deposits received from customers to secure the ijarah assets given to them.

22.1

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------
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Summary of amounts relating to leases charged in different line items of the financial statements 
is as follows:

25.2

These fully paid bonus modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each were issued before 2009 when 
modaraba  was managed by Trust Management Services. After change of management 
company no modaraba certificates were issued as bonus certificates from 2009 till date. 

27.3

Carrying amount of ROU assets
Depreciation charge
Interest expense
Repayment of lease liability

 2,266,005
 508,695
 320,090
 700,224

 -  
 133,976

 2,691
 155,743

20.5
38
38
25

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

DUE TO DIRECTOR

This represents the amount received as a loan from Director Mr. Etrat Rizvi. The loan is interest 
free, unsecured and payable at within 6 months from 3rd June 2022. The purpose of this loan 
is to provide interim liquidity support to modaraba.

CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

Authorized certificate capital

26

27

27.1

2022 2021

70,000,000  70,000,000

Modaraba certificates

of Rs. 10 each.

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

2022

Certificate capital27.2

2021 2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

70,000,000  70,000,000

 15,000,000  15,000,000

Modaraba certificates of

Rs. 10 each fully paid in

cash.  150,000,000  150,000,000

 12,300,000  12,300,000

Modaraba certificates of

Rs. 10 each issued as fully

paid bonus certificates.  123,000,000  123,000,00027.3

 2,500,000  2,500,000

Modaraba certificates issued

of Rs. 10 each issued in

consideration of assets

as result of take over  25,000,000  25,000,000

 29,800,000  29,800,000  298,000,000  298,000,000

27.4
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Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited holds 5,261,388 (2021: 5,261,388) 
Modaraba certificates which represents 18% (2021: 18%) of the equity stake in the Moadaraba as 
required by the SECP vide Order No. SC/M/RW/Trust/2009-44.

As at June 30, 2022, Mr. Aslam Motiwala, a major certificate holder of the Modaraba, holds 
16,959,500 modaraba certificates (2021: 16,959,500) of the Modaraba representing 56.91% 
(2021: 56.91%) holding.

All certificates rank equally with regard to residual assets of the Modaraba. Certificate holders are 
entitled to receive all distributions including profit distributions and other entitlements in the form 
of bonus and right certificates as and when declared by the Modaraba. Voting and other rights 
are in proportion to the shareholding.

27.4

27.5

27.6

This represents profit set aside to comply with the Modaraba Regulations, 2021 for modarabas 
issued by the SECP which is not available for distribution. These regulations require a Modaraba 
to transfer not less than 20% and not more than 50% of its after tax profits till such time that 
reserves equal to 100% of the paid up capital and thereafter, a sum not less than 5% of its after 
tax profits. During the current year, the Modaraba has transferred an amount of Rs. 2,273,047 
(2021: Rs. 1,321,313) which represents 20% (2021: 20%) of the profit after tax.

28.1

This represents deficit on revaluation of investments classified as fair value through other 
comprehensive income. Unrealized gain on revaluation of investment cannot be distributed to 
the certificate holders.

29.1

This represents surplus over book value resulting from the revaluation of owner-occupied land 
that became asset held for sale. Revaluation surplus cannot be distributed to the certificate 
holders.

30.1

Statutory reserve
Revenue reserves:
 - Accumulated loss

 83,785,844

 (55,206,290)
 28,579,554

 81,512,797

 (63,629,835)
 17,882,962

28.1

2022RESERVES 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

28

UNREALIZED LOSS ON REVALUATION OF
INVESTMENTS 
Opening balance
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation during the year
Transferred to accumulated loss during the year

Closing balance

 (2,728,426)
 (2,800,256)

 -   
 (2,800,256)
 (5,528,682)

29.1
 (4,867,878)

 2,139,452
 -   

 2,139,452
 (2,728,426)

29

30

Opening balance      
Surplus transferred to equity on disposal of fixed assets       
Closing balance

30.1
 2,457,200

 (2,457,200)
 -   

 2,457,200
 -   

 2,457,200

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS
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Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

 843,336
 2,600,285
 3,443,621

 461,151
 3,047,065
 3,508,216

28.1

Disbursement of Ijarah / Murabaha / Musharakah
to be made  39,911,500  7,030,50032.2.1

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

INCOME FROM IJARAH - NET
Income from ijarah operations
Income suspended during the year
Less: depreciation on fixed assets given on ijarah
Less: insurance on ijarah assets

32
 51,965,702

 (24,720)
 (32,822,012)

 (3,462,331)
 15,656,639

 39,393,144
 -   

 (27,091,735)
 (2,552,570)

 9,748,839

9.2
20.2

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Notice was served to Trust Modaraba dated 28 August 2018, along with certain other 
modarabas, by Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) for the recovery of tax under Sindh Sales Tax on 
Services Act, 2011 amounting to Rs. 38.52 million comprising allegedly unpaid sales tax on 
services rendered in Sindh from years 2011-12 to 2017-18.

The Modaraba along with other Modarabas has filed a petition in Honorable Sindh High Court 
(SHC) on September 1, 2018 challenging the demand of Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) on the 
grounds of non-applicability of sales tax. A stay order in this regard has been granted by the SHC 
stating that no adverse order in respect of the proposed treatment shall be made against the 
Petitioners. The management of the Modaraba based on its discussions with its legal counsel is of 
the view that in light of the stay order of the Court and the merits of the matter involved, the 
impugned charge of sales tax will be quashed and favorable outcome is expected. Therefore, no 
provision for any sales tax liability on rentals of lease financing has been made in the financial 
statements. The expected date of hearing is 12 October, 2022 for further processing of the case.

The Assistant commissioner Inland Revenue has issued order dated June 30, 2022 by creating 
demand under sub-section 161 of Rs 1,038,285 along with default surcharge of Rs 809,862. The 
tax payer has filed appeal against said order on July 16, 2022. Hearing of the case is pending and 
date of hearing is not yet fixed. In view of tax consultant, the favorable outcome is expected in 
favor of modaraba.

Ijarah commitments

The Modaraba has entered into ijarah arrangements for vehicles. These arrangements have 
remaining terms of less than five years. Such arrangements also include a clause to enable upward 
revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions. Future 
ijarah payments due under these arrangements at the year end are as follows:

31

31.1

31.1.1

31.2

These represent facilities committed but not yet disbursed to the customers as at the reporting 
date.

31.2.1
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Profit on murabaha finances
Income suspended during the year
Reversal of suspension income

 10,195,937
 -   

 568,293
 10,764,230

 10,446,531
 (598,594)

 983,096
 10,831,033

11.3.1
33.1 & 11.3.1

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

PROFIT ON MURABAHA FINANCES33

Opening balance

Add: charged during the year
Impact of change in accounting policy
Less: Provision written off during the year
Net provision charged /(written off) for the year
Closing balance

 12,583,374

 5,041,533
 3,125,841
 (799,815)
 7,367,559

 19,950,933

 37,110,661

 -   
 -   

 (24,527,287)
 (24,527,287)

 12,583,374

37.1
4.1

37.2

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES37

Profit on musharakah finances
Income suspended during the year
Less: Commission of selling agent
Less: Insurance on diminishing musharakah

 6,647,978
 (171,780)
 (156,000)
 (26,295)

 6,293,903

 6,944,166
 -   

 (1,180,000)
 -   

 5,764,166

PROFIT ON MUSHARAKAH FINANCES34

Dividend income on equity investments classified at FVTPL
Profit on sale of long term investments
(Loss) / profit on sale of short term investments

 1,705,750
 -   

 (1,274,637)
 431,113

 1,210,874
 538,891

 6,664,561
 8,414,326

INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS - NET35

Gain on disposal of ijarah assets
Gain on disposal of owned fixed assets
Fair value gain on investment property
Profit on deposit and saving accounts with banks
(Loss) on disposal of assets classified as held for sale
Rental income from investment properties
Gain on settlement
Miscellaneous income

20.4.1

19

19.1

36.1

 6,608,703
 166,468

 -   
 505,560

 (3,892,550)
 -   

 37,335,047
 1,909,659

 42,632,887

 5,681,248
 1,192,754
 1,869,000

 182,630
 -   

 80,004
 -   

 552,107
 9,557,743

OTHER INCOME36

This includes reversal of suspension amounting to Rs. 0.568 million (2021: 0.983) in respect of 
parties with whom contracts has been rescheduled.

33.1

This includes an amount of Rs. 549,130 (2021: Rs. 352,730) pertaining to documentation fee.36.1
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 1,787,596
 3,010,411
 243,526

 5,041,533

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

11.4
8.5

7.4.1

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------Break up of provision for doubtful receivables
charged during the year are as follow:
Long term murabaha finances 
Short term murabaha finances
Legal suits charges receivable

37.1

 6,657,297
 11,410,411

 696,048
 50,058

 100,000
 466,926

 -   
 570,193

 19,950,933

 3,060,159
 8,400,000

 -   
 -   

 466,265
 656,950

 -   
 -   

 12,583,374

11.4
8.5
12.1
13.3
7.3.1
7.4.1
7.5.1
9.3

Break up of provision for doubtful receivables
are as follows:
Provision for doubtful long term murabaha finances
Provision for doubtful short term murabaha finances
Provision for short term Musharakah finances
Provision for Diminishing Musharakah finances
Provision for trade receivables
Provision for legal suits charges receivable
Provision for sundry receivable
Provision for doubtful ijarah rental receivables

37.2

 18,484,817 
 6,445,935 
 5,138,826 
 1,851,210 
 1,740,241 
 1,006,358 
 2,107,478 

 844,632 
 532,888 
 132,783 
 787,758 
 528,664 
 537,381 
 244,302 
 450,000 
 112,228 

 554,542 
 429,561 
 508,695 
 461,151 

 320,090 
 241,849 

 14,801 
 -   
 -   

 43,476,190 

 15,409,891 
 2,866,203 
 5,005,388 
 1,959,679 
 1,754,204 

 999,538 
 1,869,291 

 803,219 
 1,319,875 

 101,585 
 763,069 
 292,041 
 436,357 
 215,821 

 400,000 
 117,793 

 443,739 
 -   

 133,976 
 1,144,581 

 2,691 
 390,994 

 9,025 
 -   

 7,000 
 36,445,960 

38.2
38.1

38.3

38.4

20.3
10

20.5

25

38.5

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Bad debts written off
Fees and subscription
Vehicle running
Rent, rates and taxes
Electricity, gas and water
Repairs and maintenance
Telephone, postage and courier
Legal and professional charges
Advertisement
Printing and stationery
Traveling and conveyance 
Entertainment
Insurance
Auditors' remuneration
Registrar's services
Depreciation on own assets
Stock in trade - written off
Depreciation on right of use assets
Ijarah rental expense
Unwinding of lease liabilities
Miscellaneous
Bank charges and commission
Charity
Zakat

38
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Annual audit fee
Half yearly review
Code of corporate governance
Out of pocket expenses

 250,000 
 67,500 
 82,500 
 50,000 

 450,000 

 287,500 
 57,500 

 -   
 55,000 

 400,000 

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

Auditors' remuneration38.4

 5,600,071
 753,750

 -   
 92,114

 6,445,935

 1,847,579
 -   

 744,674
 273,950

 2,866,203

7.3
7.4

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------Breakup of bad debts written off during the
year are as follows:
Trade debtors
Legal suits' charges receivable
Ijarah rental receivable
Sundry receivable

38.1

Basic salary
House rent allowance
Medical allowance
Other allowances
Retirement benefits

Number of person(s)

 11,209,320
 4,483,319
 1,120,862
 580,740

 1,090,576
 18,484,817

 4,209,096
 1,683,527

 420,878
 530,740
 367,154

 7,211,395

13

 7,000,224
 2,799,792

 699,984
 50,000

 723,422
 11,273,422

4

2022 Executives Others Total

----------------------------Rupees----------------------------

Basic salary
House rent allowance
Medical allowance
Other allowances
Retirement benefits

Number of person(s)

 9,154,581
 3,661,832

 915,458
 901,155

 776,865
 15,409,891

 4,495,838
 1,798,335

 449,584
 901,155
 313,859

 7,958,771

17

 4,658,743
 1,863,497

 465,874
 -   

 463,006
 7,451,120

4

2021

This includes Rs. 0.956 million (2021: Rs. 0.776 million) in respect of contribution to the staff 
provident fund.

38.2

Executives have been provided with modaraba maintained cars and are also entitled for 
reimbursement of fuel expenses.

This includes expense relating to short term leases amounting to Rs. 1,493,568 (2021:Rs. 1,465,318).38.3

No Director of Modaraba Management Company has any interest in any charitable activities.38.5

Salaries and wages also include salaries and allowances of executives as per the following details:
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Current tax expense for the year
Deferred tax
Prior year adjustment

 2,191,026
 (467,200)

 -   
 1,723,826

14

40.1

 1,243,335
 -   

 103,143
 1,346,478

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

TAXATION40

Net profit for the year
Weighted average number of certificates
Earnings per certificate

 11,365,233
 29,800,000

 0.38

Rupees
Number
Rupees

 6,606,566
 29,800,000

 0.22

EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED41

Accounting profit before taxation
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 17% (2021: 17%)
Tax effect of:
- Permanent differences
- Adjustments relating to prior years
- Others

 13,089,059
 2,225,140

 210,315
 -   

 (711,629)
 1,723,826

40.1.1 & 40.1.2  7,953,044
 1,352,017

 -   
 103,143 

 (108,682)
 1,346,478

Relationship between accounting profit and taxation40.1

MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S FEE

The modaraba management Company is entitled to a remuneration for services rendered to the 
modaraba under provision of the modaraba companies and modarabas (Floatation and control) 
ordinance, 1980 up to a maximum of 10% per anum of the annual profits of the modaraba.

39

As at June 30, 2021 income of non-trading Modarabas was exempt from tax provided that not 
less than 90% of its profits in the year after transfer to statutory reserve are distributed amongst 
the certificate holders. Since profit distributed was below the defined limit; alternative corporate 
tax was charged at 17% in 2021.

40.1.1

In current year, the exemption from tax of non-trading Modarabas is withdrawn and current tax 
is calculated on at the rate of 17%.

40.1.2

There is no dilution effect on the basic earnings per certificate of the Modaraba.41.1
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Profit before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
- Depreciation:
 Under ijarah
 In own use
 Right of use assets
- Provision for doubtful receivables
- Gain on disposal of ijarah assets
- Gain on disposal of owned fixed assets
- Loss on disposal of asset held for sale
- Profit on long term investment
- Balances written off
- Stock in trade - written off
- Loss / (profit) on sale of short term investments
- Unrealized loss / (gain) on revaluation of financial
 assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Unwinding of lease liabilities
- Fair value gain on investment property
- Workers' Welfare Fund
- Dividend income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease / (increase) in current assets
- Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
- Short term murabaha finances receivables
- Short term musharakah finances receivables
- Ijarah rental receivables
- Stock in trade
Increase in current liabilities
- Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

 13,089,059

32,822,012
 554,541
 508,695

 5,041,533
 (6,608,703)

 (166,468)
 3,892,550

 -   
 6,445,935

 429,561
 1,274,637

 12,474,396
 320,090

 -   
 267,124

 (1,705,750)
55,550,153
68,639,212

 (11,749,924)
 10,760,302
 2,406,399

 12,500,970
 429,561

 7,351,348
 21,698,656
90,337,868

20.2
20.3
20.5
37
36
36
16.1
35
38
38
35

6.3
25
19

35

 7,953,044

27,091,735
 443,739
 133,976

 -   
 (5,681,248)
 (1,192,754)

 -   
 (538,891)

 2,866,203
 -   

 (6,664,561)

 (1,146,910)
 2,691

 (1,869,000)
 162,307

 (1,210,874)
12,396,413

20,349,457

 368,115
 (265,369)
 4,278,036
 (142,784)

 -   

 1,954,039
 6,192,037
26,541,494

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS42
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Unclaimed profit distributions
Loan from Director
Lease liabilities against right of
use assets

 12,834,792
 5,000,000

 2,394,566
 20,229,358

 (54,928)
 5,000,000

 (700,224)
 4,244,848

 -   
 -   

 3,094,790
 3,094,790

 12,889,720
 -   

 -   
 12,889,720

Unclaimed dividends
Lease liabilities against right of
use assets

 12,889,720

 -   
 12,889,720

 (1,581)

 (155,743)
 (157,324)

 -   

 2,691
 2,691

 12,891,301

 153,052
 13,044,353

As at June
30, 2021

Non-cash
changes

Cash flows
(Net)

As at June
30, 2022

---------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------

Changes in Financing Activities42.1

Impact of non-cash changes in lease liabilities comprise of interest charge on lease liabilities 
Rs. 320,090 (2021: 2,691) (refer to note 25).

Assets:
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Ijarah rental receivables - secured
Income tax refundable
Long term murabaha finances
Asset held for sale
Short term murabaha finances - secured
Long term musharakah finances
Short term musharakah finances
Deferred taxation
Deposits
Investments
Operating fixed assets given on lease /
ijarah - tangible
Operating fixed assets in own use-tangible
Right of use assets

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 154,862
 -   

 -   
 1,869,987

 -   
 2,024,849

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 19,195,330
 -   
 -   

 2,773,749
 -   
 -   

 951,700
 7,281,478

 112,298,906
 11,657,965

 1,711,065
 155,870,193

 7,690,515
 32,908,149

 
28,291,113
 4,048,929
 3,072,891

 79,992,821
 8,625,000

 30,990,535
 1,704,637

 23,689,845
 1,160,917

 -   
 -   

 34,963,100
 -   

 554,940
 257,693,392

 7,690,515
 32,908,149

 
28,291,113
 4,048,929
 3,072,891
 99,188,151
 8,625,000

 30,990,535
 4,478,386

 23,689,845
 1,160,917
 1,106,562
 7,281,478

 
147,262,006
 13,527,952
 2,266,005

 415,588,434

5
6

7
9
15
11

8
13
12
14
17
18

20
20
20

Liabilities:
Unclaimed profit distributions
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Due to director 
Lease liabilities against right of use assets
Deferred income on murabaha
Customers' security deposits

Net Balance

Certificate holders' equity
Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments 
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
Net Balance

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 1,964,011
 2,366,206
 45,071,713
 49,401,930

 12,834,792
 11,361,125
 5,000,000

 430,555
 6,698,560
 8,810,600

 45,135,632

 12,834,792
 11,361,125
 5,000,000
 2,394,566
 9,064,766

 53,882,313
 94,537,562

 2,024,849 106,468,263 212,557,760321,050,872

 326,579,554
 (5,528,682)

 -   
 321,050,872

21
22
26
25
23
24

Total Up to
one year

One year
to five years

Over
five years

2022

----------------------------Rupees-------------------------Note

MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES43

TRUST MODARABA Annual Report 202270



Assets:
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Ijarah rental receivables - secured
Income tax refundable
Stock in trade
Long term murabaha finances
Short term murabaha finances - secured
Long term musharakah finances
Short term musharakah finances 
Deposits
Investments
Investment property
Assets held for sale
Operating fixed assets given on lease /
ijarah - tangible
Operating fixed assets in own use - tangible

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 154,862
 -   

 -   
 -   

 1,429,812
 1,584,674

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 13,175,768
 -   

 241,302
 -   

 553,100
 10,515,018

 -   
 59,992,922
 11,696,477
 96,174,587

 5,394,699
 26,057,529

 23,568,097
 16,549,899
 4,777,383

 429,561
 77,841,930
 41,750,837

651731
 26,792,292

 -   
 -   

 8,469,000

 13,805,000
 34,963,100

 -   
 281,051,058

 5,394,699
 26,057,529

 23,568,097
 16,549,899
 4,777,383

 429,561
 91,017,698
 41,750,837

 893,033
 26,792,292

 707,962
 10,515,018
 8,469,000

 13,805,000
 94,956,022
 13,126,289

 378,810,319

5
6

7
9
15
10
11
8
13
12
17
18
19

16
17
18

Liabilities:
Unclaimed profit distributions
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Lease Liabilities against right of use assets
Deferred income on murabaha
Customers' security deposits

Net Balance

Certificate holders' equity
Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments 
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
Net Balance

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 1,746,246
 31,345,731
 33,091,977

 12,889,720
 3,742,653

 -  
 5,143,468
 8,330,765

 30,106,606

 12,889,720
 3,742,653

 -  
 6,889,714

 39,676,496
 63,198,583

 2,024,849 106,468,263 212,557,760 315,611,736 

 315,882,962
 (2,728,426)

 2,457,200
 315,611,736

21
22
25
23
24

Total Up to
one year

One year
to five years

Over
five years

2021

----------------------------Rupees-------------------------Note

TRUST MODARABA Annual Report 202271



44

44.1

44.1.1

44.1.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Modaraba's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency 
risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Modaraba's overall 
risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize 
potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board) of the Management 
Company, chief operating officer and chief financial officer. The Board provides principles for 
overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other 
price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Modaraba's overall risk management procedures, to minimize the potential adverse effects of 
financial market on its performance, are as follows:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign currency, profit rate, commodity price and equity price that will 
affect the Modaraba's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future 
commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to  transactions in foreign 
currencies. The Modaraba is not exposed to currency risk arising from currency exposure as 
Modaraba is not involved in foreign currency transactions.

Profit rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market profit rates.

As at the reporting date the profit rate profile of the Modaraba’s profit bearing financial 
instruments were as under:

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Modaraba does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit and 
loss. Therefore, a change in profit rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the 
Modaraba.

Financial assets
Short term murabaha finances
Ijarah rental receivables
Long term murabaha finances
Long term musharakah finances
Short term musharakah finances

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets
Bank balances - deposit accounts
Bank balances - dividend account

30,990,535
 4,048,929
 99,188,151
 4,528,444

 23,689,845

 3,116,919
 4,531,160

 41,750,837
 16,549,899
 91,017,968

 893,033
 26,792,292

 5,077,166
 148,787

8
9
11
13

5
5

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

Fixed rate instruments
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Bank balances
Short term murabaha finances
Ijarah rental receivables
Long term musharakah finances
Short term musharakah finances 
Long term murabaha finances
Long term deposits
Short term investments
Investments
Advances, deposits and other receivables

 7,662,018
 30,990,535
 4,048,929
 4,478,386

 23,689,845
 99,188,151
 1,106,562

 32,908,149
 7,281,478
 5,448,505

 216,802,558

 5,387,341
 41,750,837
 16,549,899

 893,033
 26,792,292
 91,017,698

 707,962
 26,057,529
 10,515,018
 11,291,397

 230,963,006

5
8
9
13

11
17
6
18
7

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

Textile Composite
Healthcare
Steel
Food and Allied
Educational Institutions
Miscellaneous
Oil & Gas
Agriculture
Clearing Forwarding
Insurance/Tracker

 -   
 3,931,171

 3,067,440
 28,236,807
 23,758,461
 49,749,168
 18,005,513

 32,004,666
 2,740,515

 21,908,500
 183,402,241

 12,347,453
 2,711,430

 -   
 28,236,807
 14,361,733
 63,671,549
 25,148,851
 38,241,821

 -   
 8,632,752

 193,352,396

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

If profit rates, as at the reporting date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables 
held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have been Rs. 71,143 (2021: Rs. 52,260) 
higher / lower. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of floating rate instruments 
outstanding at reporting dates were outstanding for the whole year.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets 
represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting 
date, net of impairment, was as follows:

44.2

44.2.1

Geographically all credit exposure is concentrated in Pakistan.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for receivables (murabaha financing, musharakah financing 
and ijarah / lease rental receivables) as at the reporting date by type of customer was:

44.2.2
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Not past due
Past due 1 - 180 days
Past due 181 days - 1 year
Past due 1 - 2 years
More than 2 years

100,759,382
4,501,131

3,751,073
 -   

82,038,524
 191,050,110

 92,743,810
 6,735,952
 1,439,731

 4,854,253
 99,312,944

 205,086,690

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

Past due 181 - 365 days
1 - 2 years
More than 2 years

 -   
 1,400,000
 17,104,133
 18,504,133

598,594
 -   

 16,722,842
 17,321,436

The aging of murabaha, musharakah, lease / ijarah rental and trade receivables and related 
impairment loss as at the reporting date is as follows:

44.2.3

The Modaraba has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy parties and obtaining 
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from 
defaults.  The Modaraba also uses other publicly available financial information and its own 
trading records to rate its customers. The Modaraba’s exposure and the credit ratings of its parties 
are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst 
approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed 
annually.

The management monitors and limits Modaraba's exposure to credit risk through monitoring of 
clients' credit exposure, reviews and conservative estimates of provisions for doubtful receivables, 
if any, and through the prudent use of collateral policy. The management is of the view that it is 
not exposed to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately 
diversified in organizations of sound financial standing covering various industrial sectors and 
segments.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty 
default rate. The table below shows the bank balances and investments held with some major 
counterparties at the reporting date:

44.2.4

Aging of murabaha, musharakah, lease / ijarah rental
and trade receivables

Aging of impaired murabaha, musharakah, ijarah rental and trade receivables

The Bank of Punjab
Meezan Bank Limited
State Bank of Pakistan

 148,787
 5,228,140

 10,414
 5,387,341

 - 
 7,649,701

 12,317
 7,662,018

PACRA
JCR-VIS

AA
AAA

-
A-1+

20212022AgencyLong termShort term
Rating Rating

-----------Rupees----------

Further, the Modaraba's exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to Investments, 
Murabaha financing, Ijarah financing, and other receivables are disclosed in the relevant notes to 
the financial statements.
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The Modaraba's exposure related to ijarah receivables, murabaha receivables and musharakah 
receivables are secured by collaterals held and the Modaraba’s portfolio of financial assets is 
broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties 
thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with financial liabilities.

The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Modaraba's 
reputation. Owing to the fact that the Modaraba is in a positive working capital position at the 
year end, the management believes the liquidity risk to be low.

The table below analyses the Modaraba's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 
12 months equate to their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

44.3

Note 43 to the financial statements summarizes the maturity profile of the Modaraba's assets and 
liabilities.

Fair value of financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at the fair value of consideration paid 
or received, net of transaction costs as appropriate, and subsequently carried at fair value or amortized 
cost.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate to 
their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

Fair value estimation

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on 
the reporting date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and financial liabilities is 
considered not significantly different from book value as there is an active market for the Modaraba 
listed equity investments.

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value hierarchy categories are described in note 4.18 to the financial statements.

44.4

June 30, 2022
Lease liabilities against right of
use assets
Unclaimed profit distributions
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Due to director

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

1,964,011
 -   
 -   
 -   

 1,964,011

 430,555
 12,834,792
 11,361,125
 5,000,000

 24,626,472

 2,394,566
 12,834,792
 11,361,125
 5,000,000

 26,590,483

 2,394,566
 12,834,792
 11,361,125
 5,000,000

 26,590,483

-------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------

June 30, 2021
Lease liabilities against right of
use assets
Unclaimed profit distributions
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 12,889,720
 3,742,653

 16,632,373

 -   
 12,889,720
 3,742,653

 16,632,373

 -   
 12,889,720
 3,742,653

 16,632,373

-------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------

Over
5 years

Between 1
& 5 years

Less than
1 year

Contractual
cash flows

Carrying
Amount
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Cash and bank balances
Short term investments 
Advances, deposits and other receivables
Short term murabaha finances - secured
Short term musharakah finances (secured -
considered good)
Diminishing musharakah financing
Ijarah rental receivables - secured 
Murabaha finances
Deposits
Investments

 7,690,515
 32,908,149
 5,448,505

 30,990,535

 23,689,845
 4,478,386
 4,048,929
 99,188,151
 1,106,562
 7,281,496

 216,831,073

 -   
 32,908,149

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 32,908,149

 7,690,515
 -   

 5,448,505
 30,990,535

 23,689,845
 4,478,386
 4,048,929
 99,188,151
 1,106,562

 -  
 176,641,428

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 7,281,478
 7,281,478

5
6
7
8

13
9
11
17
18

Cash and bank balances 
Short term investments 
Advances, deposits and other receivables 
Short term murabaha finances - secured 
Short term musharakah finances (secured - 
considered good) 
Diminishing musharakah financing 
Ijarah rental receivables - secured 
Murabaha finances 
Deposits 
Investments

 5,394,699
 26,057,529
 11,291,397

 41,750,837

 26,792,292
 893,033

 16,549,899
 91,017,69
 707,962

 10,515,018
 230,970,364

 -   
 26,057,529

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 26,057,529

 5,394,699
 -   

 11,291,397
 41,750,837

 26,792,292
 893,033

 16,549,899
 91,017,698

 707,962
 -   

 194,397,817

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 10,515,018
 10,515,018

5
6
7
8

13
9
11
17
18

At fair value
through OCI

(equity
instruments
designated
upon initial
recognition)

Amortized
cost

Assets at fair
value

through
profit or loss
(Mandatorily
Measured)

Total2022

2021

----------------------------Rupees-------------------------

Note

Financial instruments by categories44.5

The following table presents the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value at June 
30, 2022:

The following table presents the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value at June 
30, 2021:

Financial Assets:
Short term investments (note 6)
Long term investments (note 18)

 32,908,149
 7,281,478

-   
-   

-   
-   

 32,908,149
 7,281,478

----------------------------Rupees---------------------------

Level 4Level 3Level 2Level 1

Financial Assets:
Short term investments (note 6)
Long term investments (note 18)

 26,057,529
 10,515,018

-   
-   

-   
-   

 26,057,529
 10,515,018

Lease liabilities against right of use assets
Unclaimed profit distributions
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Due to director

 2,394,566
 12,834,792
 11,361,125
 5,000,000

 31,590,483

 -   
 12,889,720
 3,742,653

 -   
 16,632,373

25
21
22
26

2022Financial liabilities at amortized cost 2021
Note ------------------Rupees-----------------
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Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated 
with the processes, technology and infrastructure supporting the Modaraba’s operations either 
internally within the Modaraba or externally at the Modaraba’s service providers, and from 
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and 
regulatory requirements and generally accepted satandards of investment management behavior. 
Operational risks arise from all of the Modaraba’s activities.

The Modaraba’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses 
and damage to its reputation with achieving its objective of generating returns for certificate 
holders.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational 
risk rests with the Board of Directors of the Management Company. This responsibility 
encompasses the controls in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and 
responsibilities;

- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- documentation of controls and procedures;

- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of 
controls and procedures to address the risks identified;

- ethical and business standards; and

- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Capital risk management

The Modaraba’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Modaraba’s ability to 
continue as a going concern in order to provide return for certificate holders and benefits for 
other stakeholders and to maintain healthier capital ratios in order to support its business and 
maximize certificate holders value. The Modaraba manages its capital structure and makes 
adjustments to it, in the light of changes in economic conditions. There were no changes to the 
Modaraba's approach to capital management during the year and the Modaraba is not subject to 
externally imposed capital requirement.

The Company finances its operations through equity, loan from director and management of 
working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance 
to minimize risk.

44.6

44.7

Total equity 
Less: Cash and bank balances 
Capital 
 
Total liabilities 
 
Debt to equity ratio

 326,579,554
 (7,690,515)
318,889,039

 94,537,562

30%

 315,882,962
 (5,394,699)
310,488,263

 63,198,583

20%

2022 2021
Note ------------------Rupees-----------------
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45

Further, the Modaraba's exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to Investments, 
Murabaha financing, Ijarah financing, and other receivables are disclosed in the relevant notes to 
the financial statements.

The Modaraba's exposure related to ijarah receivables, murabaha receivables and musharakah 
receivables are secured by collaterals held and the Modaraba’s portfolio of financial assets is 
broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties 
thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVES / KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the year as remuneration and benefits 
to executives / key management personnel of the Modaraba are as follows:

46

45.1 These executives have been provided with the Modaraba maintained cars and are also entitled 
for reimbursement of fuel expenses.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting 
entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director 
(whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity. Related parties of the Modaraba 
include the Modaraba Management Company [Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) 
Limited], directors and key management personnel of the Modaraba Management Company, key 
management personnel of the Modaraba and their close family members, the provident fund 
trust and entities with common directors or under common management and control.

Contribution to the provident fund is made in accordance with the services rules. Modaraba 
Management fee, if any, is accrued in accordance with the requirements of the Modaraba 
Regulations. Remuneration of key management personnel are in accordance with the terms of 
their employment. Other transactions are carried out at agreed terms.

Amounts due from and due to related parties are shown under respective notes to these financial 
statements. All transactions are based on commercial terms and are approved by the Board of 
Directors. Outstanding balances at the reporting date are unsecured and interest free. There have 
been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

Managerial remuneration
House rent allowance
Medical allowance
Meeting fees allowance
Other allowances
Retirement benefits

Number of person(s)

 7,000,224
 2,799,792

 699,984
 -   

 50,000
 723,422

 11,273,422

4

 4,658,743
 1,863,497

 465,874
 420,000

 -  
 463,006

 7,871,120

4

2022 2021
------------------Rupees-----------------

 Executives / Key
Management Personnel
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The amounts above do not include salaries and other employee benefits of the executives of the Company 
which have been disclosed in note 45.

2022 2021

Al-Zamin Modaraba
Management (Private)
Limited

Employees' Provident
Fund

Director

Executives and
close relatives
thereof

Modaraba
Management
Company

Associated
undertaking

Director

Associated
persons

Management fee
 
 

Contribution for the year

Interest free loan obtained
Interest free loan repaid

Loan given during the year
Repayment of loan received

39

26
26

7.1
7.1

Note

 1,484,020
   

 955,501

 10,000,000
 5,000,000

 500,000
 170,000

 901,706
   

 776,865

 -   
 -   

 200,000
 30,000

Al-Zamin Modaraba
Management (Private)
Limited

Director

Executives 

Payable against
management fee 
 
 
Loan payable 
 
Loan receivables

26

7.1

 1,484,020

 5,000,000

 500,000

 901,706

  -    

 170,000

------------Rupees------------
Related party Basis of

Relationship
Nature of transaction

Transactions during the year

Outstanding balance as at the reporting date
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Revenues
Total revenues for reportable segments
Other revenues
Modaraba's revenues

Profit
Total profit for reportable segments
Other income
Fair value gain on asset held for sale
Operating expenses
Modaraba Management Company's fee
Workers' Welfare Fund
Taxation

Assets
Total assets for reportable segments
Corporate assets unallocated:
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Income tax refundable
Deferred taxation
Deposits
Non-current assets held for sale
Fixed assets
Cash and bank balances

Total assets as per the balance sheet

Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments
Corporate liabilities unallocated:
Unclaimed profit distributions
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Due to director 
Lease liabilities against right of use assets
Total liabilities as per the balance sheet

39,779,308
 35,999,464
 75,778,772

 22,263,379
 35,999,464

 53,550
 (43,476,190)
 (1,484,020)

 (267,124)
 (1,723,826)
 11,365,233

 363,193,012 

 14,945,580
 3,072,891
 1,160,917
 1,106,562

 8,625,000
 15,793,957
 7,690,515

 52,395,422
 415,588,434

 70,930,424

 12,834,792
 3,377,780
 5,000,000
 2,394,566

 94,537,562

 40,678,692
 3,637,415

 44,316,107

 41,738,943
 3,523,765

 -   
 (36,445,960)

 (901,706)
 (162,307)

 (1,146,169)
 6,606,566

 323,946,811

 8,583,175
 4,777,383

 -   
 707,962

 22,274,000
 13,126,289
 5,394,699

 54,863,508
 378,810,319

 47,776,915

 12,889,720
 2,531,948

 -   
 -   

 63,198,583

2022 2021

Note ------------------Rupees-----------------

Reconciliation of reportable segments revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities is as follows:

Certain liabilities, assets, other income and other operating charges of the Modaraba cannot be 
allocated to a specific segment. Accordingly, these amounts have been classified as unallocated.
There are no differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' profits or losses, 
assets and liabilities with the Modaraba's profits or losses, assets and liabilities.
There are no changes from prior years in the measurement methods used to determine reported 
segment profit or loss. 
There are no asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.
All non-current assets of the Modaraba are located in Pakistan as at the reporting date.
Sales to five major customers of the Modaraba are approximately 28% during the year ended 
June 30, 2022 (2021: 41%).

47.3

47.4
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48 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2022

Number of employees as at June 30,
Average number of employees during the year

Size of the fund (in rupees)
Percentage of investments made
Fair value of investments (in rupees)
Cost of investments made (in rupees)

 5,828,699
85.78%

 5,000,000
 5,000,000

 6,467,134
0.00%

 -   
 -   

17
19

2021

21
21

49

50

51

52

PROVIDENT FUND

Audited Audited
Rupees

 (Un-audited) 
Rupees

 (Audited) 

Investment in COIs  -   
 -   

0.00% 5,000,000
 5,000,000

85.78%

2022
Investment

Rupees
Investment

as a % of size
of funds

2021
Investment

Rupees
Investment

as a % of size
of funds

Break-up of investment in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the provident fund are 
as follows:

Investments out of the funds of provident fund have been made in accordance with the 
provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

SUBSEQUENT NON ADJUSTING EVENT

Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited having market value of Rs 695,000 and Netsol 
Technologies Limited having market value of Rs 2,393,760 were subsequently excluded from PSX 
KMI all shares Islamic Index (List of sharia Compliant shares) with effect from July 15, 2022.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Items presented in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2020 
have been reclassified to confirm to current year's presentation. The items are reclassified for 
better presentation.

AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management 
Company in its meeting held on _______________.

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Assets classified as held for sale
Investment properties

16
19

 -   
 22,274,000

 13,805,000
 (13,805,000)

 13,805,000
 8,469,000

Note Before
classification Reclassification After

classification
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PATTERN OF CERTIFICATE HOLDING
AS ON 30th JUNE 2022
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